
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The April meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will 
be held will be held on Thursday April 20, 2023 at 6:00 pm at West Elmira Free Library. 
The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please inform Ms. 
Dworkin (607-398-2021), Mrs. Melott (733-8607), or Mr. Frank (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2023-17)  
4. Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document #2023-20)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2023-21)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report (Dworkin) 
 Welcome and introduction of new Library Director, Paul Chapman 
7.  Director’s Report 
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the personnel actions as submitted. 
Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Dworkin)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2023-18) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2023-19)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2023-22) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Appenzellar)  
             e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business 
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


Document #2023-22 
 
 
Report of the April 5, 2023 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30 pm. Present were Ms. Martha Smith, Ms. Rachel Dworkin, Mr. Karl 
Schwesinger, and Mr. Kevin Hansen.  Also attending were Mr. Owen Frank and Ms. Holly Melott, 
CCLD Management. 
 
The committee received updates on the following: 

• Work on the cooling tower at Steele is progressing, completion is anticipated in 
the near future 

• The county B & G department is unsure if they will be able to replace the 
condensing system at Big Flats in a timely fashion this calendar year.  They have 
advised that the unit will be functional for another season.   

• The Horseheads Foundation is evaluating means and methods to secure electricity 
in the pavilion.   

• FAST has been contacted and will be addressing a defective panic button at 
Steele. 

• A display box was purchased with genealogy funds to protect the Mark Twain 
bust in the small conference room at Steele. 

• IT is working closely with STLS to evaluate the cost and implement the process  
of overhauling the district wide phone system. 

• As per Mr. Hansen’s nomination the HH pavilion, has been designated as a 
“Pokemon” stop. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.  

The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, 
May 3, 2023 at 5:30pm in the auditorium of the Steele Memorial Library. 

 
 



Document #2023-18 
 
Report of the April 5, 2023 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee 
were Rachel Dworkin, Phyllis Rogan, and Martha Smith.  Board members attending were Karl 
Schwesinger, Kevin Hansen, Bonnie Chollet, Penny Appenzellar, Jessica Roberts, Wayne 
Adams, and Mark Padgett.  Owen Frank and Holly Melott, CCLD management were also 
present.   
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Melott submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 04/06/2023 in the amount of 
$51,757.31 for the General Fund and $2,856.31 for the Central Library District and Central Book 
Aid Fund.  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Rogan to approve payment of the General 
Fund in the amount of $51,757.31 and Central Library District and Central Book Aid 
Fund in the amount of $2,856.31 as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    
 
Mr. Frank reported on the following: 

• An RFP to prepare the 990 was submitted to multiple auditors 
 
Mr. Padgett moved, seconded by Ms. Roberts, that Mr. Paul Chapman be hired as the 
Library Director at an annual salary of $110,000.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    

 
Ms. Dworkin informed trustees that Brian Hildreth, STLS director, will be conducting a board 
training via Zoom on Wednesday evening, April 26. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:30 pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, May 3, 2023 at 6 pm in the 
auditorium at the Steele Memorial Library. 



Document #2023-19 
 
Report of the April 12, 2023 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
Attending the meeting via Zoom: Ms. Jessica Roberts and Ms. Rachel Dworkin. Also in 
attendance Holly Melott and Owen Frank, CCLD Administration. The meeting opened at 8:45 
a.m. 
 
Ms. Melott presented the March 31, 2023 Financial Report to the Committee. The report will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Melott presented the Unpaid Bill List dated April 20, 2023 for the General Fund - $9,114.72.  
Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
The committee discussed a proposal for auditing services which had been received from Insero 
& Co. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, May 3, 2023 at 8:45 a.m. via Zoom. 
   
 
 



(Minutes of the March 16, 2023 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of 
Trustees. Document #2023-17) 
  
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Rachel Dworkin. Present Ms. Phyllis 
Rogan, Mr. Kevin Hansen, Mr. Mark Padgett, Ms. Martha Smith, Ms. Pat Silvernail,  Mr. Karl 
Schwesinger, Ms. Muriel Friend, Ms. Bonnie Chollet, Ms. Penny Appenzellar, Mr. Wayne 
Adams, Ms. Lee Saginario, Ms. Jessica Roberts.  Excused:  Mr. Jack Schamel.  Absent:  Ms. 
Crystal Gullo-Buzzetti.  Also present were Ms. Holly Melott and Mr. Owen Frank on behalf of 
the Library District’s Administration.  Visitors:  Mr. Matt Burr and Ms. Makenzie Mills. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the February 16, 2023 meeting (Document #2023-11) were presented 
for board review. Mr. Mark Padgett moved that the February Board minutes be approved as 
presented, seconded by Ms. Silvernail. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   
 
Financial Report. The February 2023 Financial Report was presented for board review.  Ms. 
Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, to approve the February Financial Report as 
presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Report of Unpaid Bills Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. Smith, that the board authorize the 
payment of the unpaid bills dated 03/16/2023 for the General Fund - $49,906.52, for the CBA 
Fund - $849.71.   VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Correspondence:  
 
President’s Report:   

• The board training for Thursday, March 9 was cancelled.  Training will be 
rescheduled in the near future 

 
Director’s Report: 

• Auditing services are being sought. 
• Cooling tower project at Steele is underway. 
• The drinking fountain on the second floor at Steele needs replaced.  Costs are being 

evaluated. 
• Friends Bookstore at Steele has been moved and is being well received by both staff and 

patrons.  Special thanks to Lewis Murray, laborer, for his assistance. 
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Mr. Schwesinger moved, seconded by Ms. Appenzellar, that the 
Raspberry Pi Kit Circulation Policy and Agreement be approved as presented. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved.   

 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Appenzellar moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet, that the March 
Personnel Actions be approved as presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the 
board (Document #2023-12)  
Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board. (Document #2023-13)  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee.  
     
Personnel Committee.  
 
Election & Continuity Committee.    
 



Advocacy Committee.  Ms. Martha Smith attended the March Friends meeting. 
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Hansen, that the board enter 
executive session to discuss personnel matters. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Rogan, that the board exit 
executive session. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, that the board offer 
Mr. Paul Chapman the position of Library Director. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Old Business.    
 
New Business.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Mr. Hansen moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, that the board accept 
the VOIP phone proposal from STLS as presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Roberts, that the positive pay 
services on both the General Fund and the CBA fund checking account with Chemung 
Canal Trust Company be discontinued. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   

Public Expression.   

Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, to adjourn.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.   

The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, April 20, 2023, at 6:00pm at the 
West Elmira Library. 





document #20-2023
Financial Report - March 31, 2023

Income 2023 Annual Budget Received to Date Balance 
Remaining

Percentage 
Received

Percentage through 
Year Notes

Library Fines, Fees & Contributions 40,750$                10,544$                 25.87%
Grants (other than N.Y.S.) 19,619$                 CCLD Friends;United Way
Foundation Contributions (HH & Steele) 200,000$              20,000$                 10%
Library District Tax Receipts 3,398,615$           3,398,615$            100%
    PILOT Funds 72,000$                0%
Interest on Investments 6,000$                 938$                      16%
State Aid
Central Library Development 96,748$                0%
Central Book Aid 65,881$                0%
Local Library Services Aid 26,025$                0%
Other State Aid - State Construction Funds

TOTAL INCOME 3,906,019$           3,449,716$            -$                   88% 25%
Expense Annual Budget  Expended to Date Balance Percent Percentage 

Personnel
Salaries 1,873,625 397405.33 21%
Overtime & Holiday Salaries 24,353 5,985$                   25%
Employee Benefits
FICA 140,529 29,828$                 21%
NY State Retirement 274,894 65,349$                 24%
Medical & Dental 541,291 123,016$               23%
Other (Disability, Wk. Comp, Unemp) 31,443 18,682$                 59%
                 Subtotal - Personnel Expenses 2,886,135 640,265 22% 25%
Contractual
Equipment 50,000 1,752$                   0% Gifts:  $641.59
Telephone 10,800 10,285$                 95%
Supplies 31,900 11,484$                 36% HH Foundation:  $563.81;HH Friends $42;Grant$Mspace$32;$1175;Mkt$140
Travel & Continuing Education 7,920 2,292$                   29%
Repairs & Maintenance 21,435 2,351$                   11%
Postage 2,925 614$                      21%
Library Materials (books, video, etc.) 394,329 74,039$                 19% Gift:$1017
Utilities 59,000 25,852$                 44%
Building Cleaning Supplies 15,000 6,545$                   44%
Fuel, Gas & Oil (Bookmobile) 4,000 1,437$                   36%
Insurance 35,675 36,996$                 104%
Vehicle Operation / Maintenance 5,000 218$                      4%
Professional Fees (audit, engineer/legal fees) 30,305 11,459$                 38%
Data Processing Expenses (Cost Share) 117,505 38,242$                 33%
Payment of Taxes 5,150 3,625$                   70%
Library Programming 43,493 16,221$                 37% $1014Friends/Grant $3125/HH Friends $167
Chemung County costs (B&G, vision) 14,000 1,307$                   9%
Capital Improvements STATE CONST see below 10,000 0%
Contingency Fund 48,595 0%
              Subtotal Expenses 3,793,167$           884,984.29$          -$                   23% 25%

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,793,167$               884,984$               

CHEMUNG COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
















	April 5 2023 B & G Commitee Meeting minutes
	April 5 2023 Executive Committee Meeting
	April 12 2023 B & F committee meeting minutes
	April Agenda 
	April board CBA bills
	CCLD - Financial Report 3-31-23
	Sheet1

	March 16 2023 Minutes
	unpaid bills detail - CBA fund- for April Exec meeting 4-5-23
	Unpaid bills detail April board-1
	unpaid bills detail for April Exec meeting 4-5-23

